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2021 10 25
2025
27,287,596 92.27
27,287,596 92.27
2,286,505 7.73
29,574,101
100.00
(4,418 )
2025 31 UFJ
149.39
2025
(@)
KL Spectal Opportunities Fund 7,022.50| 2,280,317.84|  288.96| 2,853,375.39 360.16| 9.65
Ltd USD Class A T T ) T . .
Acasta Global Fund - Class D 13,945.24 2,000,000.00 143.42 2,569,426.34 184.25 8.69
Ki ital Offsh
tngs Court Capital Offshore 1,847.17| 2,166,412.55| 1,172.83| 2,215,906.00| 1,199.62| 7.49
Fund - Series D Jun 24
Trium Larissa Global Macro
. 5,157.43 1,602,017.55 310.62 1,961,583.17 380.34 6.63
Fund Limited - Class F
Serenitas Credit Gamma
Offshore Fund Ltd Series Al 1,118.22 1,477,131.07 1,320.97 1,769,486.09 1,582.41 5.98
Boldh fund CI A UR USD
ofdnaven Tund tL1ass 1,190.68| 1,190,681.68| 1,000.00| 1,680,230.34| 1,411.15| 5.68
Series 11/21
k Part Ltd.
Cooper Creek Partners Ltd 988.61 1,760,784.69 1,781.08 1,559,522.83 1,577.50 5.27
Class A - July 2021
Glazer Enhanced Offshore Fund,
Ltd.- USD - 01Jun25 407.11 1,500,000.00 3,684.52 1,528,852.87 3,755.40 5.17
Millstreet Credit Offshore
Fund Ltd. Class A 11/21 1,027.83 1,027,829.00 1,000.00 1,471,038.12 1,431.21 4.97
Quantica Managed Futures Fund
10 7,106.08 1,043,734.60 146.88 1,116,485.47 157.12 3.78
Inc.- Class Al USD
Boldh fi 1 A UR USD
11 © ? aven fund Class A LR US 1,000.00 1,000,000.00 1,000.00 1,102,917.52 1,102.92 3.73
Series 02/25
Northlight EuropeanFundamental
12 CF Class A APR 25 1,000.00 1,000,000.00 1,000.00 1,043,271.80 1,043.27 3.53
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13 | 0L Global Opportunities Fund 716.99|  712,192.33|  993.30| 1,013,810.96| 1,413.97| 3.43
Ltd. Class C NR/59 ) T ) T T .
Kings Court Capital Offshore

14 Fund -Series D Apr 25 1,000.00 1,000,000.00 1,000.00 988,496.00 988.50 3.34
Northlight EuropeanFundamental

15 CE Class A Dec 09 368.30 842,536.74| 2,287.66 955,200.94 2,593.57 3.23
EDL Global Opportunities Fund

16 Ltd. Class C 000105 1,000.00| 1,000,000.00| 1,000.00 932,502.32 932.50( 3.15

17 Millstreet Credit Offshore 500.00 500,000.00 1,000.00 643,429.15 1,286.86 2.18
Fund Ltd. Class A 03/23 ) T T T A .
Atlas Enhanced Fund, Ltd. -

18 Class 10-C-1 - Series 471.29 471,203.96 999.82 620,028.54 1,315.60 2.10
EDL Global Opportunities Fund

19 Ltd. Class C NR/86 500.00 500,000.00 1,000.00 583,321.33 1,166.64 1.97
HG Vora Special Opportunities

20 fund 1td. Class A UR 423.71 423,714.00 1,000.00 426,766.00 1,007.20 1.44
EDL Global Opportunities Fund

21 Ltd. Class S1 NR/2 189.34 174,753.57 922.97 146,781.04 775.23 0.50
Atlas Enhanced Fund, Ltd. -

22 Class 10-C-1 - S-1 93.20 98,129.96 1,052.85 86,668.61 929.88 0.29
Atlas Enhanced Fund, Ltd. -

23 Class 10-C-1*Class S-2 16.00 17,480.43 1,092.81 18,494.99 1,156.24 0.06

2025
« )

54,039,570 8,072,971 1.0035 150

2023 31
39,362,150 5,880,312 1.0710 160

2024 31
26,492,279 3,957,682 1.1286 169

2025 31
2024 25,224,754 3,768,326 1.0880 163
25,353,022 3,787,488 1.0935 163
10 25,510,887 3,811,071 1.0926 163
11 25,684,821 3,837,055 1.1001 164
12 25,886,266 3,867,149 1.1087 166
2025 25,510,381 3,810,996 1.1165 167
26,198,317 3,913,767 1.1246 168
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26,550,059 3,966,313 1.1310 169
26,550,868 3,966,434 1.1375 170
27,588,988 4,121,519 1.1350 170
28,985,267 4,330,109 1.1399 170
29,574,101 4,418,075 1.1377 170
IFRS
IFRS

13

| SRS & U1 0N Y R O8RS

(2021F10H258 GERRNsE) ~ 20256 7HF)
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1.50 100
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125 | = 10MEURRRES " (ZW s
1.00 f—~ 60
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s a1 0-35
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3.80% 457 @ CYESt RO S ReE
il = e 3250 DEEBENZ B (1L,
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5.0 A 7EFD 1T R )
-100 b=#iFD12ZAXDIOHREY
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0 10 2 Sz | umen | ssos
2023 31 ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ’
2,329,852 19,429,298 36,751,464
2023 2024 31 (2,329,852) (19,429,298) (36,264,335)
2,569,041 15,847,305 23,473,200
2024 2025 31 (1,943,393) (15,847,305) (22,360,422)
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2025 31
2025 31 2024 31

4 877,452 131,083 4,449,648 664,733
6,14,15 23,495,295 3,509,962 31,169,543 4,656,418

7 2,000,000 298,780
8 763,754 114,097 4,540,401 678,291
21,118 3,155 3,000 448
27,157,619 4,057,077 40,162,592 5,999,890
5 500,000 74,695 570,000 85,152
9 71,856 10,735 107,549 16,067
9 57,574 8,601 98,937 14,780
10 4,600 687 2,300 344
31,310 4,677 21,656 3,235
665,340 99,395 800,442 119,578
26,492,279 3,957,682 39,362,150 5,880,312
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6A 1,838,016 274,581 3,953,620 590,631
89,464 13,365 113,062 16,890
() (567) (85) 406 61
1,926,913 287,862 4,067,088 607,582
9 (280,569) (41,914) (553, 836) (82,738)
9 (148,131) (22,129) (170,392) (25,455)
10 (27,600) (4,123) (27,600) (4,123)
11 (17,500) (2,614) (15,525) (2,319)
(84,651) (12,646) (84,916) (12,686)
(558, 451) (83,427) (852,269) (127,320)
1,368,462 204,435 3,214,819 480,262
2025 31
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2025 31
2025 31
1,368,462 204,435
7,674,248 1,146,456
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(41,363) (6.,179)
9,654 1,442
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54,039,570 8,072,971
2,400,000 358,536
(20,292,239)  (3,031,458)
3,214,819 480,262
39,362,150 5,880,312
2024 31
3,214,819 480,262
20,814,212 3,109,435
(4,540,401) (678,291)
91,311 13,641
(13,653) (2,040)
98,937 14,780
(19,415) (2,900)
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2,300 344
10,736,137 1,603,872
2,730,000 407,835
(17,038,333)  (2,545,357)
(14,308,333)  (2,137,522)
(3,572,196) (533,650)
4,449,648 664,733

877,452 131,083
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2021
(CIMA)
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19,643,510 2,934,544
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2,321,271 346,775
2,128,377 317,958
4,449,648 664,733
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36,751,464.31

2,569,040.70  (15,847,305.43) 23,473,199.58

60

53,850,910.30

2,329,851.92  (19,429,297.91)  36,751,464.31

2025 31 2024 31
1.1286 1.0710
IFRS
IAS 38
2025 31 2024 31
26,550,058 39,456,392
(57,779) (94,242)
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2025

31

KL Special Opportunities Fund Ltd

1 7,922.50 335.78| 2,660,246.72 10.04
USD Class A

2 Acasta Global Fund - Class D 13,945.24 182.81( 2,549,305.81 9.62
Kings Court Capital Offshore Fund

3 . 1,847.17 1,210.85| 2,236,652.00 8.44
- Series D Jun 24
Trium Larissa Global Macro Fund

4 o 5,157.43 385.18| 1,986,541.19 7.50
Limited - Class F
Serenitas Credit Gamma Offshore

5 ) 1,118.22 1,578.47| 1,765,076.35 6.66
Fund Ltd Series Al
Cooper Creek Partners Ltd.

6 988.61 1,728.26| 1,708,570.09 6.45
Class A - July 2021
Boldhaven fund Class A UR USD

7 ) 1,190.68 1,328.10| 1,581,342.57 5.97
Series 11/21
Millstreet Credit Offshore Fund

8 1,027.83 1,381.74| 1,420,195.54 5.36
Ltd. Class A 11/21
Atlas Enhanced Fund, Ltd.

9 _ 944.43 1,254.70| 1,184,974.01 4.47
- Class 10-C-1 - Series
Quantica Managed Futures Fund

10 7,106.08 164.32( 1,167,671.99 4.41
Inc. - Class Al USD
Boldhaven fund Class A UR

11 ] 1,000.00 1,038.12| 1,038,119.00 3.92
USD Series 02/25
EDL Global Opportunities Fund

12 716.99 1,400.59| 1,004,216.82 3.79
Ltd. Class C NR/59
Northlight EuropeanFundamental CF

13 368.30 2,485.89 915,544.14 3.46
Class A Dec 09
HG Vora Special Opportunities

14 847.43 966.44 818,991.00 3.09
fund 1td. Class A UR
Millstreet Credit Offshore Fund

15 500.00 1,242.38 621,191.00 2.34
Ltd. Class A 03/23
EDL Global Opportunities Fund

16 500.00 1,156.43 578,217.30 2.18
Ltd. Class C NR/86
EDL Global Opportunities Fund

17 189.34 799.07 151,295.26 0.57
Ltd. Class S1 NR/2
Atlas Enhanced Fund, Ltd.

18 92.16 939.23 86,562.65 0.33
- Class 10-C-1 - S-1
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Atlas Enhanced Fund, Ltd.

19 15.86 1,165.61 18,484.64 0.07
- Class 10-C-1*Class S-2
Steadfast International Ltd.

20 13.14 79.88 1,050.00 0.00
Class A FRI
Steadfast International Ltd.

21 0.00 20,526,274.51 1,046.84 0.00
Class A - DI
Steadfast International Ltd.

22 0.00 87.72 0.01 0.00
Class A

0.0001

82/211



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO000O0n(E37044)
Oooooooooooooooooad

MS Star Funds

Statement of financial position

as at 31 March 2025
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
Notes USD UsD
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4 877.452 4,449 648
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 6. 14, 15 23,495,295 31.169.543
Investment in advance 7 2,000,000 =
Receivable from investment sold 8 763,754 4,540,401
Other receivables and prepavments 21,118 3.000
Total assets 27,157,619 40,162,592
Liabilities
Subscription received in advance 3 500,000 570,000
Management fees pavable 9 71.856 107,549
Performance fecs pavable 9 57,514 98,937
Administrator fees payable 10 4.600 2,300
Other pavables and accruals 31.310 21.656
Total liabilitics (excluding net assets
attributable to unitholders) 665,340 800,442
Net assets attributable to unitholders 26,492,279 39,362,150
Sabina Jerrybandan Adam Fox
Authorised Signatory Authorised Signatory

as authorised signatories of
Ogier Global Trustee (Cavman) Limited
as Trustee of MS Star Funds

18 September 2023

The accompanying notes are an integral pari of these financial statements.

A
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MS Star Funds

Statement of comprehensive income

Jor the year ended 31 March 2025
For the year For the vear
ended ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Notes USD usD
Income
Realised and unrealised gains on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss A 1,838,016 3,953,620
Interest income 89,464 113,062
Foreign exchange (loss)/gain on translation (367) 406
Total income 1926913 4,067,088
Expenses
Management fees 9 (280,369) (553,836)
Performance fees 9 (148,131) (170,392)
Administrator fees 10 (27,600) (27.600)
Trustee fees {1l (17,500) (15,525)
Other operating expenses (84.651) (84 916)
Total operating expenses (358451) (832,269)
Increase in net assets attributable to
unitholders from operations for the year 1,368.462 3.214.819

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

84/211



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO000O0n(E37044)
Oooooooooooooooooad

MS Star Funds
Statement of changes in net assets attributable to unitholders
Jor the year ended 31 March 2025
For the year For the vear
ended ended
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
Note usb UsD
Net assets attributable to unitholders at the
beginning of the year 39,362,150 54,039,570
Issue of units during the year 2,800,000 2,400,000
Redemption of units during the vear (17.038,333) (20,292,239)
Increase in net assets attributable to unitholders
from operations for the year 1.368.462 3.214.819
Net assets attributable to unitholders at the
end of the year 13 26,492,279 39,362,130

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MS Star Funds

Statement of cash flows
Jfor the year ended 31 March 2025
For the year For the vear
ended ended
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
Note usp UsD
Cash flows from operating activitics
Increase in net assets attributable to unitholders
from operations for the vear 1,368,462 3,214,819
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Decrease in financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 7.674.248 20,814,212
Increase in investment in advance (2,000,000) -
Decrease/(increase) in receivable from investment
sold 3,776.647 (4.540.401)
{Increase)/decrease in other receivables and
prepavments {18,118) 91,311
Decerease in management fees pavable (35,693) (13,653)
{Decrease)/increase in performance fees pavable {41.363) 98937
Increase/{decrease) in other pavables and accruals 9.654 (19,415)
Increasc/(decrease) in administrator fees pavable 2.300 (2.300)
Net cash provided by operating activities 10,736,137 19.643.510
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of units 2,730,000 2,970,000
Pavments on redemption of units (17.038.333) (20.292.239)
Net cash used in financing activities (14.308.333) (17.322.239)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash
equivalents for the year (3.572.196) 2,321,271
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the vear 4,449 648 2,128,377
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
vear 4 877.452 4.449 648

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

86/211



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO000O0n(E37044)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MS Star Funds

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the yvear ended 31 March 2025

1  Fund information

MS Star Funds (the “Fund”) whose registered office is located at Ogier Global (Cayman) Limited,
89 Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman KY1-9009, Cayman Islands was established as an
open-¢nded unit trust under the laws of the Cayman Islands pursuant to the amended and restated
Trust Deed executed by Mita Capital Pte, Ltd. (the “Manager™) and Ogicr Global Trustee (Cayman)
Limited (the “Trustee™) (the “Trust Deed™) and registered with the Cayman Islands Monetary
Authority (CIMA) under the Cayman Islands Mutual Funds Act (2021 Revision) on 30 July 2021,

The Fund’s investment activities are managed by the Manager, which also acts as the Investment
Manager of the Fund, with the administration delegated to ASCENT Fund Services (Singapore) Pte.
Ltd. (the “Administrator”).

The Fund commenced operations on 1 November 2021,

The investment objective of the Fund is to provide stable investment returns to the investors over the
long-term while managing risk by seceking to select the best funds availably globally whilst
maintaining a diversified investment allocation, The Fund will target to achieve attractive absolute
returns while focusing on capital preservation,

The Fund had no emplovees during the vear ended 31 March 2025,

Capitalised terms are defined within the Private Offering Memorandum (“POM™) of the Fund, unless
otherwise defined herein, which should be read in conjunction with the financial statements.

2 Basis of preparation

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards
(“IFR8") which comprise standards and interpretations approved by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”).

(b) Basis of measurement

The financial statements are prepared on a historical cost basis except for financial assets and
liabilitics held at fair value through profit or loss. Other financial assets and financial liabilitics are
stated at amortised cost or redemption amount.

(¢) Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in United States Dollar (“USD") and rounded to the nearest
USD, which is the Fund’s functional currency. The Fund considers USD as the currency that most
faithfully represents the economic effect of the underlving transactions, events and conditions.
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MS Star Funds

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

2 Basis of preparation (continued)

(d) Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS Accounting Standards requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilitics, income and expenses. Actual
results could differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlyving assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the vear in which the estimates
ar¢ revised and in any future vears affected.

Application of the accounting policies in the preparation of the financial statements requires the
Manager and Trustee to apply judgement involving assumptions and estimates concerning future
cash flows and other developments. including the likelihood. timing or amount of future transactions
or events.

Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires
Jjudgement, considering factors speceific to the assct or liability. The determination of what constitutes
‘observable’ requires significant judgement by the Fund. The Fund considers observable data to be
that market data that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not
proprictary, and provided by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.

The investment portfolio of the Fund consists of investments in underlyving investment funds which
ar¢ subjeet to gates. lock ups, halts to redemptions or side pockets and the Fund may make
adjustments to the reported Net Asset Value (“NAV”™) of the fund based on these considerations. The
valuation of such investments is subject to significant judgement and depends on the availability of
market information. The carrying value of the funds may be materially different to the values
ultimately realised on redemption.

The Fund has made no other significant judgements in applying its accounting policies nor are there
any other sources of estimation uncertainty that may have a sigmificant risk or result m a matenal
adjustment to the carryving amount of assets and liabilities.

3 Material accounting policies
(a) Financial instruments

(i) Classification
In accordance with IFRS 9, the Fund classifies its financial assets and financial liabilities at initial
recognition into the categories of financial assets and financial liabilities discussed below.

In applving that classification, a financial assct or financial liability is considered to be held for
trading if:

(a) It is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near
term; or

(b) On imtial recogmtion, it 15 part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together, and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking: or

(¢) It is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated
and effective hedging instrument).

10
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MS Star Funds

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2025

3 Material accounting policies (continued)
(a) Financial instruments (continuned)
(i) Classification (continued)

Financial assets
The Fund classifics its financial asscts as subsequently measured at amortised cost or measured at
fair value through profit or loss on the basis of both:

. The entity’s business model for managing the financial asset;
[ The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Financial assets measured ar amoriised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective
i1s 10 hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and its contractual terms give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. The Fund includes in this catcgory short-term non-financing receivables
including cash and cash equivalents. investment in advance. receivable from investment sold and
other receivables.

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss if:

(a) Its contractual terms do not give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are solelv pavments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding: or

(b) It is not held within a business model whosc objective is cither to colleet contractual cash flows,
or to both collect contractual cash flows and sell: or

(¢) At initial recognition, it is irrevocably designated as measured at fair value through profit or loss
when doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilitics or recognising the gains and losses on
them on different bases.

The Fund’s investment portfolio is managed and performance is evaluated on a fair value basis. The
Fund is primarily focused on fair value information and uses that information to assess the assets’
performance and to make decisions. The Fund has not taken the option to irrevocably designate any
cquity secuntics as fair value through other comprehensive income. Consequently, all investments
are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss
A financial liability is measured at fair value through profit or loss if it meets the definition of held
for trading.

The Fund may make short sales in which a borrowed security is sold in anticipation of a decline in
the market value of that security, or it may use short sales for various arbitrage transactions. Short
sales are held for trading and are consequently classified as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss. Derivative contracts that have a negative fair value are presented as liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss.

11
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MS Star Funds

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2025

3 Material accounting policies (continued)
(a) Financial instruments (continuned)
(i) Classification (continued)
Financial liabilitics fcontimied)

Financial liabilities measured ar amortised cost

This category includes all financial habilities, other than those measured at fair value through profit
or loss. The Fund includes in this category short-term pavables including subscription received in
advance, management fees pavable. performance fees pavable, other payables and accruals, and
administrator fees pavable.

As such, the Fund classifies all of its investment portfolio as financial assets or liabilities as fair value
through profit or loss,

The Fund’s policy requires the Manager and the Trustee to evaluate the information about these
financial assets and liabilities on a fair value basis together with other related financial information.

(ii) Recognition
The Fund recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on the date it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

A regular way purchase of financial assets is recognised using trade date accounting. From this date,
any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of the financial assets or liabilities are recorded
in the statement of comprehensive income.

(iii) Initial measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recorded in the
statement of financial position at fair value. All transaction costs for such instruments are necognised
dircetly in profit or loss,

Financial assets and liabilitics (other than those classified as at fair value through profit or loss) arc
measured initially at their fair value plus any directly attributable incremental costs of acquisition or
issue.

(V) Subsequent measurenient

Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are re-measured at fair value. Subscquent changes in the fair value of those financial instruments arc
recorded in realised and unrealised gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Financial assets, other than those classified as at fair value through profit or loss. are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the financial assets are derecognised or impaired, as well
as through the amortisation process.

Financial liabilitics. other than those classified as at fair value through profit or loss, are measured at
amortised cost using the cffective interest rate method, Gains and losscs are recogmised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised. as well as through the amortisation process.
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

3 Material accounting policies (continued)

(a) Financial instruments (continned)

Fair value measurement principles

Fair value is the price that would be reccived to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principle or, in its absence.
the most advantageous market to which the Fund has access at that date. The fair value of a lability
reflects its non-performance risk.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilitics that are not traded in an active market is determined
by using valuation techniques. The Fund uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are
based on market conditions existing at cach reporting date. These valuation techmques involve a
degree of estimation, the extent of which depends on the instrument’s complexity and the availability
of market based data. The methods and assumptions applied in determining the fair values of cach
class of financial asscts or financial liabilities are disclosed in note 13.

(v} Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar
financial asscts) is derecognised where the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired,
or the Fund has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset, or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a pass-
through arrangement and the Fund has:

(a) Transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset: or
(b) Neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset. but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Fund has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset (or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement), and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the
Fund’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Fund also recogniscs an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Fund has retained.

The Fund derecognises a financial liability when the obligation under the liability is discharged.
cancelled or expired.

(vi) Offsetting financial assets and liabilities

Financial asscts and liabilitics arc offsct and the net amounts are reported in the statement of financial
position, when a current legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts exists and there
is intent to settle on a net basis or to settle the asset and the hability simultancously,

(vii) Impairment
Financial assets that are measured at amortised cost are reviewed at cach reporting date. The Fund
applies the general approach in accordance with IFRS 9.

The Fund measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit loss
(“ECL") if the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. If, at the reporting date,
the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Fund shall measure the
loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2025

3 Material accounting policies (continued)
(a) Financial instruments {continned)
(vii) Impairment {continued)

The Fund’s approach to ECL reflects a probability-weighted outcome. the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. Significant
financial difficulties of the counterparty, probability that the counterparty will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and default in pavments arc all considered indicators that a loss allowance
may be required.

If the credit risk increases to the point that it is considered to be credit impaired, interest income will
be caleulated based on the gross carrving amount adjusted for the loss allowance.

(b) Foreign currency translation

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to USD,
the functional currency, at the for¢ign currency closing exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date.
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency shall be translated to USD
at the foreign currency exchange rates prevailing at the dates that the values were determined. Non-
monetary items that arc carried at historical cost in a foreign currency shall be translated to USD
using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions.

Resulting exchange differences on the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in foreign
currencies are recorded in the statement of comprehensive income as part of the “Realised and
unrealised gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”. Realised and unrealised
cxchange differences on other assets and hLabiliies are also recorded m the statement of
comprehensive income and disclosed within “Foreign exchange gain on translation™.

(¢) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions. Cash
cquivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which arc subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and which have an original
contractual maturity date of three months or less. Cash and cash equivalents are held for the purpose
of mecting short-term cash commitments rather than for investment or other purposes.

(d) Interest income

Interest income are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as they acerue, Interest
income includes any differences between the initial carrving amount of an interest-bearing
instrument and its amount at matunty calculated on an effective interest rate basis.

(e) Expenses
All expenses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on an accrual basis.
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2025

3 Material accounting policies (continued)

(M) Taxation
The Fund has received an undertaking from the Cayman Islands government exempting it from
paving taxes on income, profits or capital gains.

Interest and dividend income received by the Fund may be subject to withholding tax imposed in the
country of origin. This income is recorded gross of such taxes and the corresponding withholding
tax is recognised as a separate line item in the statement of comprehensive income.

(2) Units

All units issued by the Fund provide investors with the right to require redemption for cash at the
value proportionate to the unitholders® unit in the Fund’s net assets at the redemption date. In
accordance with 1AS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation (“1AS 32"), such instruments meet the
definition of puttable instruments. Puttable instruments may be identified as liability or equity
instruments depending on their features.

The units do not meet the criteria of an equity instrument under IAS 32 and are classified as a
financial liability,

The liability to unitholders is presented in the statement of financial position as “nef assefs
attributable to unitholders” and is determined based on the residual assets of the Fund after
deducting all other habihities,

(h) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards effective from 1 April
2024

From 1 April 2024. the Fund adopted new standards. amendments and interpretations to existing
standards that are mandatory for the Fund's accounting period beginning on 1 April 2024. The
adoption of these revisions to the requirements of IFRS did not result in substantial changes to the
Fund’s accounting policies and financial statements.

(i) New standards, amendments and interpretations effective after 31 March 2025 and have
not been early adopted
A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for
annual vears beginning after 31 March 2025, and have not been carly adopted in preparing
these financial statements, Nonge of these are expected to have a matenal effcet on the
financial statements of the Fund.

Standards Description Effective Date
Amendments to IFRS 9 and Financial Instruments and Financial 01 Jan 2026
IFRS 7 Instruments: Disclosures: Classification and

Measurement of Financial Instruments

fa—
an
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the yvear ended 31 March 2025

3 Material accounting policies (continued)

(i) New standards, amendments and interpretations effective after 31 March 2025 and have
not been early adopted (continued)

Standards Description Effective Date
Annual improvements to  Annual improvements are limited to changes that 01 Jan 2026
IFRS - Volume 11 gither clarify the wording in an Accounting

Standard or correct

relatively minor unintended  consequences,
oversights or conflicts between the requirements
in the Accounting Standards. The 2024
amendments are to the following standards:

* IFRS 1 First-lime Adoption of
International Financial Reporting
Standards;

* IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:

Disclosures and its accompanving
Guidance on implementing IFRS 7;

= IFRS 9 Financial Instruments;

* IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements; and

= JAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows

Amendments to IFRS Presentation and Disclosure in  Financial 0] Jan 2027
18 Statements
(j) Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Fund if:
(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and that person

i. has control or joint control over the Fund:
ii. has significant influence over the Fund: or
iii. is a member of the key management personnel of the Fund or of a parent of the Fund: or

A party is considered to be related to the Fund if:
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applics:

1. the entity and the Fund are members of the same group:
1i. one entity 1s an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary
or fellow subsidiary of the other entity):
iii. the entity and the Fund are joint ventures of the same third party:
iv. one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity:
v, the entity is a post-cmplovment benefit plan for the benefit of emplovees of either
the Fund or an entity related to the Fund;
vi. the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);
vii, a person identified in (a)(1) has sigmficant influence over the entity or 15 a member
of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and
viii, the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the reporting entity or to the parent of the reporting entity.
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2025

4 Cash and cash equivalents

Asat 31 March 2025, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances held with the pavment bank of
the Fund, DBS Bank Limited, of USD 877,452 (31 March 2024: DBS Bank Limited, of USD 9.977
and Mita Securities. of USD 4,439.671). As at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, no restrictions in
the use of cash and cash equivalents exist.

5  Subscriptions received in advance

Subscriptions received i advance represent the amounts received from  sharcholders for
subscriptions to participating shares of the Fund after financial vear end. Sharcholders may be
required to deposit the amounts with the Fund prior to the issuance of shares.

At 31 March 2025, Fund had the subscriptions received in advance amounting to USD 500,000 (31
March 2024 USD 570.000)

6 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

31 March 31 March
2025 2024
USD uUspD
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

- Investment in underlving funds 23.495.295 31.169.543

Total financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss 23,495 295 31.169.543

Inv in underlving fun

The fair value of investment in the unlisted open-ended investment funds is determined based on
unaudited and unadjusted NAV, The unadjusted NAV is used when the units in a fund are
redecmable at the reportable NAV at, or approximately at, the measurement date. Investment in
underlving funds have been valued based on unaudited NAV since they are non-coterminous with
the Fund,

As at 31 March 2025, investments in underlying funds amounting to USD 23,495,295 are based on
net asset values as caleulated by the administrators of the underlving funds as the audited financial
statements of the underlying funds are not co-terminous with that of the Fund.

6A Realised and unrealised gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

For the vear ended 31 March 2025 and 2024, the realised and unrcalised gains on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss consist of the following:

For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 31 March
2025 2024
USD usD
Realised and unrealised gains on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss:
Realised gains 1,232,663 1.288,016
Unrealised gains 605,353 2.665.604
Total realised and unrealised gains on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss 1.838.016 3.953.620
17
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2025

7 Investment in advance

The investment in advance represent the amounts paid in advance to the investee companies for the
IPO applications. The subscriptions were completed in April 2025, As at 31 March 2025, the
investment advances amounted to US$2,000,000 (2024 Nil),

8 Receivable from sale of investment

Receivable from the sale of an investment refers to the amount of money a company expects to
reecive from selling an investment, such as a stock, bond, or other financial asset. It represents a
financial claim against the buver of the investment. As at 31 March 2023, the receivable from sale
of investment amounted to US$763.754 (2024 US$4.540.401).

9  Investment manager fees

Management fee

Pursuant to the investment management agreement, the Fund pavs the Manager an investment
management fee at a rate of 1.1% per annum on its net asset value in respect of Class USD Units.
Such fees are calculated monthly and pavable quarterly in arrcars,

The management fees for the vear are disclosed in the statement of comprehensive income and the
management fees pavable at the vear end are disclosed in the statement of financial position.

Performance fee

The Fund pays the Manager a performance fee in respect of Class USD Units outstanding on ¢ach
valuation date equal to 10%, of the increase in the net asset value of that unit over the previous
highest month or the initial offer price, since the preceding valuation day or date of issuc of the
relevant units. The performance fee is calculated monthly and payable quarterly in arrears.

The increase in the net asset value per unit upon which the calculation of the performance is based
represents the profits eamed in respect of each relevant unit during the relevant vear from the trading
and investment of the assets of the class and related income and dividends, less the cost of operating
the class, which costs include the investment management fec. Profits include both realised and
unrealised gains. No performance fee is paid in respect of the above-mentioned classes of units unless
the increase in the net asset value of that unit exceeds the previous high water mark in the relevant
month.

The performance fees for the year are disclosed in the statement of comprehensive income and the
performance fees pavable at the vear end are disclosed in the statement of financial position.

10 Administrator fees

The Fund has entered into an administration agreement with ASCENT Fund Scrvices (Singapore)
Pte. Ltd.. to provide the following administrative services.

Fund acconnting /administration
The Administrator is entitled to receive a monthly administration fee at an annual rate as follow:

Asset Under Management Basis Point (annualised)

(Monthly Valuation)

First USD 100 million 4

Next USD 100 million 3

Thereafter 2
18
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the yvear ended 31 March 2025

10 Administrator fees (contined)

The fund accounting/administration fee is subject to a minimum monthly fee of USD 2,000 (USD
24,000 per annum) for the first vear and USD2.300 (USD 27,600 per annum) for subsequent vear,
The accounting/administration fee is calculated monthlv and payvable annually in arrears.

The Administrator also provides the following services, and charges fees as agreed from time to
time.

Financial statements preparation and audit liaison

The Administrator is entitled to charge a financial statements preparation and audit liaison for the
preparation of ¢ach set of annual financial statements and for the preparation of each set of interim
financial statements,

Registrar and transfer agency
For the provision of registrar and transfer agency fees the administrator 15 entitled to charge a
transaction fee per investor transaction for the Fund.

The Administrator is also reimbursed for all properly incurred and approved out of pocket cxpenses.

The Administrator’s fees for the vear arc disclosed in the statement of comprehensive income and
the Administrator’s fees payable at the vear end are disclosed in the statement of financial position.

11 Trustee fees

The Trustee shall be entitled to receive, out of the assets of the Fund, a fee equal to USD 17,300 per
annum. Such remuneration may be increased in accordance with the Trustee's terms and conditions
in force from time to time but only with the consent of the Manager. In addition, the Trustee 1s
cntitled to reimbursement by the Fund of all out of pocket expenses properly incurred by it in the
performance of its duties under the Trust Deed.

The Trustee will also receive a one-time set up fee of USD 5,500,

The trustee fees for the vear are disclosed in the statement of comprehensive income and the trustee
fees pavable at the vear end are disclosed in the statement of financial position. As at 31 March 2025
and 31 March 2024, there are no oulstanding trustee fees pavable.

12 Capital units

Capitad Management

The capital of the Fund is represented by the net assets attributable to unitholders. The net assets
attributable to unitholders can change significantly on a monthly basis as the Fund 1s subject to
monthly subseriptions and quarterly redemptions at the diserction of unitholders. The Fund’s
objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern in
order to provide returns for unitholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong
capital base to suppon the development of the investment activities of the Fund.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Fund’s policy is to perform the following:

«  Monitor the level of monthly subscriptions and quarterly redemptions of the Fund: and
» Redeem and issue new units in accordance with the constitutional documents of the Fund.

The Manager monitor capital on the basis of the value of net assets attributable to unitholders.

There were no changes in the Fund’s approach to capital management during the vear.

19

97/211



EDINETOOOO

OO000DO000DO000DO000O0n(E37044)
Oooooooooooooooooodad

MS Star Funds

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2025

12 Capital units (continved)

Unit class

All unit classes of the Fund participate equally in such net asscts of the Fund as are represented by
the Fund on liquidation and in any dividends and other distributions attributable to the Fund as may

be declared.

Movement in unitholders of the Fund for the vear ended 31 March 2025 was as fol
Units at the
beginning of Units Units
Unit class the year issued redeemed
Class USD Units 36,751 464 351 256904070  (15.84730543)

Movement in unitholders of the Fund for the vear ended 31 March 2024 was as fol

Units at the

beginning of Units Units

Unit class the year issued redeemed
Class USD Units 53,850,910.30 232985192  (19429.29791)

Net Asset Value (“NAV™) per unit as at reporting date:

Unit class 31 March
2025

USsD

Class USD Units 1.1286

13 Net asset value per unit

The following schedule shows the reconciliation between the NAV determined in accordance with

lows:

Units at the
end of the
year

23.473.199.58
lows:

Units at the
end of the
year

36,751.464.31

31 March
2024
usD

1.0710

the POM and the NAV determined in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards.

The POM states that the start-up costs should be amortised in 60 months. IAS 38, fnfangible Assets

(“IAS 38™) states that start-up costs should be expensed when incurred.
31 March 2025

31 March 2024

UsD USD
Net assets attributable to unitholders in accordance
with the POM 26,550,058 39.456,392
Adjustments
Unamortised start-up costs (57.779) (94.242)
Net assets attributable to unitholders in accordance
with IFRS Accounting Standards 26,492 279 39362150
Number of outstanding units 23.473,199.58 36.751.464 31
NAV per unit in accordance with the POM 1.1311 1.0736
NAY per unit in accordance with IFRS Accounting
Standards 1.1286 1.0710

20

98/211



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO000O0n(E37044)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MS Star Funds

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2025

14 Financial instrument disclosures and associated risks
The principal investment objective of the Fund is disclosed in note 1.

The Fund’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including market price
risk, interest rate risk and currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

(a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
as a result of changes in market prices whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the
individual security or its issuer or factors affecting all secunties traded in the market. Market nsk
comprises market price nisk, interest rate nsk and currency nisk.

Market price risk

Market price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those ansing from interest rate risk or
currency risk). whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial
instruments or its issuer, or factors affecting similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The following table analyses the Fund's exposures to price risk and sets out the concentration of the
investment assets at 31 March.
31 March 2025

%o of the
Fund’s total
Fair value US$ assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Investments in underlyving funds 23,495,295 86.51%
31 March 2024
% of the
Fund’s total
Fair value US$ assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- Investments in underlving funds 31,169,543 77.61%

As at 31 March 20235, had the fair value of the investments in underying funds increased by 5% with
all other variables held constant, profit before tax would have increased by approximatelv USD
1.174.765 (31 March 2024: USD 1.558.477). A 5% decrease in the fair value of the investments in
underlying funds would have an equal but oppaosite effeet,

The funds, to which the Fund subscribes, indirectly expose the Fund to market price risk. This nisk
is monitored and managed by the investment managers of the funds. The funds’ managers may try
to mitigate these risks but there can be no assurance that such strategies will be implemented, or if
implemented, will be effective. Because of this indircet exposure the sensitivity analvsis discussed
above may not fully indicate the total cffect of the market price risk exposure of the Fund.

21

99/211



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO000O0n(E37044)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MS Star Funds

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the yvear ended 31 March 2025

14 Financial instrument disclosures and associated risks (conrinned)

(a) Market risk (continued)

Inierest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Fund has no interest-bearing financial instruments exeept for cash at banks which is subject to
normal market related short-term interest rates. Therefore, the Fund is not exposed to significant
interest rate risks. The cash balance at period end does not represent the Fund exposure to interest
rate risk during the reporting period.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk exposure arises from the Fund investing
in financial instruments and entering into transactions which are denominated in currencies other
than its functional currcncy.

The funds, to which the Fund subscribes. may invest in currencies different to the functional currency
of the Fund and therefore indirectly expose the Fund to currency risk. This nisk is monitored and
managed by the investment managers of the funds. The Manager may try to mitigate these risks by
investing in forward currency contracts but there can be no assurance that such strategies will be
implemented, or if implemented, will be effective.

As at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024, the majority of the financial asscts at fair value through
profit or loss are traded in USD. As the Fund’s assets and liabilities are predominately denominated
in the functional currency. the Fund is not exposed to material currency risk.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation
or commitment that it has entered into with the Fund. The carrving values of financial assets
(excluding any investments in underlving funds) best represents the maximum credit risk exposure
at the reporting date.

At 31 March 2023, the Fund financial assets exposed to credit risk amounted to the following, and
financial assets are classified into credit risk classes as follows:

31 March 2025 High Average Low No

quality quality quality rating Total

USD USD USD USD UsSD

Financial assels
Cash and cash equivalents 877,452 - - . 877452
Investment in advance - - - 2,000,000 2,000,000
Receivable from
investment sold - - - 763.754 763.754
Total 877,452 - - 2,763,754 3,641,206
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14 Financial instrument disclosures and associated risks (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

At 31 March 2024, the Fund financial asscts exposcd to credit risk amounted to the following, and
financial assets are classified into credit risk classes as follows:

31 March 2024 High  Average Low No
quality quality quality rating Total
USD USD UsD USD USD
Financial assets
Cash and cash cquivalents  4.449.648 - - - 4449648
Reecivable from
investment sold - - - 4.540,401 4.540.401
Total 4.449.648 - - 4.540.401 $.990.049

The high quality, average quality and low quality credit risk classes are made up of the following
credit ratings:

Standard & Poor’s  Moody’s Investors Service Fitch
High quality AAA - BBB- Aaa— Baa3 AAA -BBB-
Average quality BB+ - BB- Bal — Ba3 N/A
Low quality B+-B- Bl -B3 B+-B-

The Fund’s cash and cash equivalents are held mainly with DBS Bank Limited which as at 31 March
2025 has a credit rating of AA-, (DBS Bank Limited and Mita Securities for 31 March 2024: AA-
and NR respectively) as determined by Standard & Poor’s.

Fxpected credit loss

The Fund measures credit risk and ECLs on financial assets measured at amortised cost using
probability of default, cxposure at default and loss given default. Management considers both
historical analvsis and forward-looking information in determining anv ECL. Management considers
the probability of default to be close 1o zero as these instruments have a low nisk of default and the
counterpartics have a strong capacity to meet their contractual obligations in the near term. As a
result, no loss allowance has been recognised based on 12-month ECLs as any such impairment
would be wholly insignificant to the Fund,

(¢) Liguidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations arising from
its financial liabilitics.

The Fund’s POM provides for the quarterly redemption of units and it is therefore exposed to the
liquidity risk of meeting unitholder redemptions. The Fund’s policy only allows for redemptions on
the first day of each calendar quarter and unitholders must provide 100 days notice.

Underlying investment funds may have applied redemption and subscription restrictions in order to
protect investors or to ensure future liquidity needs.
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2025

14 Financial instrument disclosures and associated risks (conrinued)
(¢) Liquidity risk fcontinued)

The table below shows the contractual, undiscounted cash flows of the Fund’s financial liabilities at
the reporting date. For the analysis of the liquidity gap, the habilities of the Fund are included.

31 March 2025 Less than Between  Greater than Indefinite
1 month 1-6 months 6 months maturily Total
UsD usp UsSD USD usD
Financial liabifities
Subscription received
in advance 500,000 B - - 500,000
Management fees
payable 71.856 - - - 71,856
Performance fees
payable 57.574 - - - 57,574
Other payables and
accruals 31310 - - - 3L310
Administrator lees
payable 4.600 - = = 4.600
Net assels attributable
to unitholders - 26,492 279 - - 26,492,279
Liquidity gap 665,340 26.492.279 - - 27.157.619
31 March 2024 Less than Between  Greater than Indefinite
1 month 1-6 months 6 months maturity Total
USD usp USD Usp UsD

Financial liabilities
Subscription received

in advance 570,000 - - - 570,000
Management fees

pavable 107,549 - - - 107,549
Performance fees

payable 98.937 - - - 98.937
Other pavables and

accruals 21.656 - - - 21,656
Administrator fees

payable 2,300 - - - 2,300
Nel assels attribulable

to unitholders - 39.362.150 - - 39.362.150
Liquidity gap 800.442 39.362.150 - - 40.162.392

15 Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of financial position

The tables below provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable:

= Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical asscts or liabilities:

= Level 2 fair value measurements arc those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included
within level | that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.c. as prices) or
indirectly (i.¢. denved from prices); and

24
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MS Star Funds

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2025

15 Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of financial position {continued)

= Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs
for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

31 March 2025 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
USD USD ()] uspD
Financial assets af fair value
through profit or loss
Investment in underlying funds 23,493,205 - 23,495,295 -
Total 23.495.295 - 23.495.295 -
31 March 2024 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
USD USD USD USD
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Investment in underlving funds 31.169.543 - 31.169.543 -
Total 31.169.543 . 31.169.543 -

In certain cases, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value
hierarchy. In such cases, an investment’s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest
level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Assessing the significance of a
particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judeement, considering factors
specific to the asset or liability. The determination of what constitutes ‘observable’ requires
significant judgement by the Fund, The Fund considers observable data to be that market data that is
readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprictary, and
provided by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.

Valuation methods

Fair value determined usine a valuation technique

Where the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is determined using a
valuation technique, the methods and assumptions will vary according to the instrument being
valued.

Investment in underlving funds
The Fund’s investments in underlying funds are priced based on the funds’ NAV as calculated by
the administrators of such funds as at the reporting date.

The Fund classifies underlving funds which allow for daily redemptions in level 1 of the fair value
hierarchy.

If the Fund has the ability to redeem its investment at NAY at the measurement date, the investment
will be categorised as a level 2 fair value measurement and if the Fund cannot redeem its imvestment
at NAYV at the measurement date but the investment may be redeemable at a future date, the reporting
entity considers the length of time until the investment will be redeemable in determining whether it
will be categorised as level 2 or level 3.

Underlying investment funds may have applicd redemption and subseription restrictions in order to
protect investors or to ensure future liquidity needs.

J
i
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MS Star Funds

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

16 Related party transactions

Transfers
The Fund’s transfers between levels are assumed to occur on the last day of the reporting vear. There
were no transfers between the levels of the fair value hicrarchy during the vearended 31 March 2023
and 2024,

Related party transactions are transfers of resources, services or obligations between related partics
and the Fund. regardless of whether a price has been charged. Parties are considered to be related if
one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other
party in making financial or operational decisions or is part of kev management of the Fund. The
following provides details on the related parties of the Fund and transactions with the related parties.

(a) Trustee

The listing of the Trustee is shown on page 1. Details of Trustee's fees charged by Trustee during
the vear and outstanding at the reporting date are disclosed in the statement of comprehensive income
and note 9.

(b) Manager

Details of management and performance fees charged by the Investment Manager during the vear
and outstanding at the reporting date are disclosed in the statement of comprehensive income and
note 7.

All related party transactions were made at arm’s length on normal commercial terms and conditions,
unless otherwise stated.

17 Events after the reporting date

There were no matenial events after the reporting date. which necessitate revision of the figures or
disclosures included in these financial statements.
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MS Star Funds

Portfolio of Investments
as at 31 March 2025

{Unaudited)
Security . Security Cusrency| Quantity .'\Imkc! Price Mar!of-tl Value | % of Nat
Tvpe {USD) (USDY Assels
1 Sgﬁp;;::g’m’n‘"jlml: N Le cf;:ﬁ: Hs:f:l usp | 7.922.50 33578 | 266024672 | 1004
2 | Acasta Global Fund - Class D Cayman | Fedge | \opy | 130454 18281 | 254030581 | 962

Idands | Fund
3 K:fﬂ;c;“:]f;‘r“l Offshore Fund C:;:n“:; Hl‘f‘f:j usp | 184717 1210.85 | 223665200 | 844
4 Imuﬂ?f:s:}?bﬂl i ansl {";‘I:::; HI'T"I:SJ usp | 515743 385.18 | 198654119 | 7.50
5 m'ialzgj;ﬁmmmm Lﬁ;ﬁ; “I:‘:fﬁ usp | 11822 157847 | 176507635 | 666
6 g:;i?ﬁ;:;m 4. L;::g; ['EI:*;; usp | 9886l 172826 | 170857009 | 645
7 g:’f;"?f;:“"dcmsmmusn CI‘:I;E ['I:ig; ush | 1,19068 132810 | 158134257 | 597
g E‘I:';“ﬁli‘:?dmmm S {‘:;I:::;; “::iﬁ UsD | 102783 138174 | 142019554 | 536
9 J-Q(I:l::sfﬁnc?il:e:m c;:fdl; H[":f; UsD | 94443 125470 | 118497401 | 447
10 Q;K:rﬁ:fod RIS | e Hﬁﬁj usD | 7,106.08 16432 | 116767199 | 441
1" g"if"g;;“dcmgm ety '“;sl;’nw; H[‘:E'j usp | 1,00000 1038.12 | 103811900 | 392
12 E)gg‘:‘;;g’m"ﬁ““ ENL C;:m‘; “I"‘E; usp | 71699 1400.50 | 100421682 | 379
13 ’;f:;“fi:ﬂ’;p‘mm;“"m““mw'; {“;::n":;; ”['fzi‘i usp | 368.30 248580 | 91554414 | 346
14 ?E;;ﬁﬁ:’mmmmﬁmm Cfs‘l::d‘; H;‘Ez usp | #4743 96644 | 81899100 | 300
15 gﬁfﬂ'}%’;ﬁiloﬁ"h°“":“m"'¢ Cl‘:;::d’; Hlf:fdﬁ usd | 50000 124238 | e21,19100 | 234
16 El;‘ﬂmﬁpwnmﬁlicﬂ“m g C;‘S"I::l‘; Hi'f‘fu‘; usp | 500.00 115643 | 57821730 | 2.8
17 ’L::L (Q:"’;;g"m““'f"i“ g L {“gl::;l“; “I‘:’:fj uspD | 18934 79907 | 15129526 | 0357
1 “::":‘:;'I‘f]'“‘g‘fﬂ”'t‘d e ‘“1‘3;’:;‘: ”f:; usp | 9216 93923 | 8656265 | 033
) Bt Gapeet | % | umpr | asas LIGS61 | 1848464 | 007
20 f:l;‘:f:s::l[:fmmimm] Ld C;::::l":; H;{:]g; UsD 13.14 T9.88 1,050.00 0.00
21 2::"’::“_‘:;”““‘“‘“"“& cl”'s‘l::l‘:d“‘s Hl'f':: usb | ooor | 2052627451 | 104684 | 000
43 | Stendtuet Totemsbbonal L Gl . | S0 | eS| pqpy 0.00% 8772 001 | 000
Islands Fund

*  The position size is 0.0001.

105/211



EDINETOOOO
0000000 DOO000DO0000O00O0O(E37044)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(2025 )
30,861,689 4,610,428
1,287,589 192,353
29,574,101 4,418,075
25,993,052
1.1377 170

106/211



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO000O0n(E37044)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

038987
#07-07A

10
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2025 1,000,000 115
1,000,000
2025 31 UFJ
115.32
2019
CEO
C10
2019
CMS101272

MAS
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2025

92,568,845 13,829
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2025 31
2025 2024

109,306 12,605 191,284 22,059
62,454 7,202

5,021
109,306 12,605 258,759 29,840
8,152 940 101,916 11,753
467,614 53,925 417,085 48,008
51,945 5,990

3,333 384

393,743 45,406 366,832 42,303
872,842 100, 656 937,778 108,145
982,148 113,261 1,196,537 137,985
161,393 18,612 245,514 28,313
43,660 5,035
161,393 18,612 289,174 33,348
119,229 13,749 170,823 19,699
84,123 9,701 84,123 9,701
62,719 7,233
203,352 23,451 317,665 36,633
364,745 42,062 606,839 69,981
1,000,000 115,320 1,000,000 115,320
(382,597) (44,121) (410,302) (47,316)
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617,403 71,199 589,698 68,004
982,148 113,261 1,196,537 137,985

31

2025 2024

1,309,774 151,043 1,591,737 183,559
28,746 3,315 11,602 1,338
(1,309,355) (150,995) (1,784,417) (205,779)
(1,460) (168) (9,771) (1,127)
27,705 3,195 (190, 849) (22,009)
5,157 595
27,705 3,195 (185,692) (21,414)

31
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2024

2025

31

31
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1,000,000 115,320 (224,610)  (25,902) 775,390 89,418
(185,692)  (21,414) (185,692)  (21,414)
1,000,000 115,320 (410,302)  (47,316) 589,698 68,004
27,705 3,195 27,705 3,195
1,000,000 115,320 (382,597)  (44,121) 617,403 71,199
2025 31
2025 2024
27,705 3,195 (190,849) (22,009)
8 81,978 9,454 61,484 7,090
9 62,454 7,202 130,641 15,066
1,460 168 9,771 1,127
5 (23,847) (2,750)
5 (2,539) (293) (11,602) (1,338)
98 11 5,440 627
147,309 16,988 4,885 563
5,021 579 2,205 254
93,380 10,769 13,209 1,523
(50,529) (5.827) (238, 460) (27,499)
(51,594) (5,950) 49,182 5,672
(84,121) (9,701) (84,123) (9,701)
59,466 6,858 (253,102) (29,188)
5,157 595
59,466 6,858 (247,945) (28,593)
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8 (252,768) (29,149)
(3,333) (384)
31,366 3,617 125,179 14,436
633 73 11,602 1,338
(
) 28,666 3,306 (115,987) (13,376)
15 (63,413) (7.,313) (263,795) (30,421)
(63,413) (7.313) (263,795) (30,421)
«C ) 24,719 2,851 (627,727) (72,389)
263,594 30,398 898,537 103,619
(98) 11) (7.,216) (832)
13 288,215 33,237 263,594 30,398
2025 31
1
069534
105 #24-03
2
2.1
FRS
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2024

2.3

2.4

2.5
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2.7
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FRS 115

FRS 119

2.9

2.10

CGU

CGU
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FVPL
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2.12

2.13

ECLs

ECLs

ECLs

12
12

360

ECLs

ECLs

ECLs
ECLs
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2.14

2.15

3.1

3.2
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ECLs
ECLs
ECLs
ECLs 19(a)
10
12
2025 2024
972,054 1,157,278
337,720 434,459
1,309,774 1,591,737
2025 2024
467,614 417,085

245,516 329,637
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2025 2024 2025 2024
(84,123) (84,123)
(417,085) (178,626)
467,614 417,085
2025 2024
2,360
1,906 6,382
633 5,220
23,847
28,746 11,602
2025 2024
81,978 61,484
62,454 130,641
10,649 4,599
39,419 24,679
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50,999 34,614
809,403 1,177,207
CPF 26,044 11,565
694 7,952
766 1,819
2025 3 31 2024 3 31
2025 2024
5,157
C )
2025 3 31 2024 3 31
«c )
2025 2024
« ) 27,705 (190,849)
17 2024 17 4,710 (32,444)
7,304 47,432
(4,502) (887)
(7,512) (14,101)
5,157
5,157

550,650 2024 592,300
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2023
252,768
2024 31
2025 31 252,768
2023
61,484
2024 31 61,484
81,978
2025 31 143,462
2024 31 191,284
2025 31 109,306
2022 2025
2023 194,015
96,259
2024 31 290,274

(290,274)
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2025

2023

2024

2025

2024

2025

2025

31

31

31

31

31
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97,179
130,641

227,820
62,454
(290,274)

62,454

2025 2024

16,758

8,424

817 1,201
1,620 67,698
5,715 7,835

8,152 101,916

30 2024 30

633 2024 5,220

2025 2024
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52,578
(633)
51,945
51,945
51,945
2025 2024
288,215 263,594
105,528 103,238
393,743 366,832
2025 2024
393,743 366,832
(105,528) (103,238)
288,215 263,594
2025 2024
6,665 16,862
112,564 153,961
119,229 170,823
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2025 2024
62,719 191,518
127,044
694 7,952
(63,413) (263,795)
62,719
62,719

2025 2024
694 7,952
21,008 4,874
(633) (5,220)

2025 2024

1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

2025 2024
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(101,263) (153, 858)
31,366 125,179
633 5,220
(12,400) (18,915)
(21,008)
308,334 516,689
8,398
308,334 525,087
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360
ECL
12 ECL
120 ECL
360 ECL
12 ECL
ECL
2025 31
10 | 12 ECL 817 817
10 | 12 ECL 1,620 1,620
ECL
4 1 467,614 467,614
12 | 12 ECL 3,333 3,333
2024 31
ECL
10 16,758 16,758
10 | 12 ECL 8,424 8,424
10 | 12 ECL 1,201 1,201
10 | 12 ECL 72,719 72,719
ECL
4 | 417,085 417,085
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2025 3 31

ECL

ECL

2024 3 31

ECL

ECL

11

FRS 109

12 ECL
31 60
16,758
12 ECL
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51,945 51,945

ECL

61 90 90

16,758
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(b

2025 3 31
2,437 2,437 2,437
467,614 467,614 467,614
3,333 3,333 3,333
393,743 393,743 393,743
867,127 867,127 867,127
119,229 119,229 119,229
245,516 245,516 84,123 161,393
364,745 364,745 203,352 161,393
( ) 502,382 502,382 663,775 (161,393)
2024 3 31
5,021 5,021 5,021
51,945 52,578 52,578
94,081 94,081 94,081
417,085 417,085 417,085
366,832 366,832 366,832
934,964 935,597 930,576 5,021
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170,823 170,823 170,823
43,660 44,429 44,429

62,719 63,412 63,412
329,637 329,637 84,123 245,514
606,839 608,301 318,358 289,943
328,125 327,296 612,218 (284,922)

2025 2024

16,758
201,953 225,660 313,827 103,258
43,164 129,455 14,469 2,156
245,117 355,115 345,054 105,414
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16,964 12,795 34,473 6,881
228,153 342,320 310,581 98,533
« )
2025 2024
(11,408) (15,529)
(17,116) (4,927)
2025 2024
5,021
51,945
2,437 94,081
467,614 417,085
3,333 -
393,743 366,832
867,127 934,964
119,229 170,823
43,660
62,719
245,516 329,637

364,745 606,839
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2025

31

2024

31

11,602

(9,771)

5,021

101,916
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11,602
(1,831)
(9,771)

(67,698)

67,698

1,831

72,719

34,218
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2025 31 2025 26

MITA CAPITAL PTE. LTD.
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 MARCH 2025
Note 2025 2024
55 5%
ASSETS
Non-Current asscts
Plant and equipment 8 109,306 191,284
Right-of-use assets 9 - 62,454
Deposits - 5,021
109,306 258,759
Currcnt asscts
Trade and other receivables 10 8,152 101,916
Contract assets 4 467,614 417,085
Finance lease receivables 11 - 51,945
Amounts due from related companies 12 3,333 -
Cash and short-term deposits 13 393,743 366,832
872,842 937,778
Total assets 982,148 1,196,537
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Non-current liabilities
Contact liabilities 4 161,393 245,514
Provision for reinstatements cost - 43,660
161,393 289,174
Current liabilities
Other payables 14 119,229 170,823
Contact liabilities 4 84,123 84,123
Lease liabilities 15 - 62,719
203,352 317,665
Total liabilities 364,745 606,839
Equity and reserves
Share capital 16 (,000,000 1,000,000
Accumulaied losses (382.597) (410,302)
617,403 589,698
Total liabilities and equity 082,148 1,196,537

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these {inancial statements,
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MITA CAPITAL PTE. LTD.
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

Note 2025 2024
S5 88

Revenue 4 1,309,774 1,591,737
Other income 5 28,746 11,602
Administrative expenses (1,309,355) (1,784,417)
Finance costs (1,460) (9,771)
Profit/(Loss) before income tax 6 27,705 (190,849)
Income 1ax expense 7 = 5,157
Profit/(Loss) for the financial vear, representing total

comprehensive income/(loss) for the financial vear 27,705 {185,692}

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements,
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MITA CAPITAL PTE. LTD.
{Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

Share Accumulated Total

capital losses equity
58 88 83

At 1 April 2023 1,000,000 (224,610) 775,390
Loss for the financial year, representing total

comprehensive loss for the year - {185,692) (185,692)
At 31 March 2024 1,000,000 (410,302) 589,698
Profit for the financial year, representing total

comprehensive income for the year - 27,705 27,705
At 31 March 2025 1,000,000  (382,597) 617,403

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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MITA CAPITAL PTE. LTD.
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

Note 2025 2024
8s S8

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(Loss) before income tax 27,705 (190,849)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of plant and equipment 8 81,978 61,484
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 9 62,454 130,641
Finance costs 1,460 9771
Gain on lease termination 5 (23,347) -
Inierest income 5 (2,539) (11,602)
Unrealised foreign exchange loss 98 5440
Operating profit before changes in working capital 147,309 4,885
Changes in working capital:
Deposit 5,021 2,205
Trade and other receivables 93,380 13,209
Contract assets (50,529) (238,460)
Other payables (51,594) 49,182
Contract liabilities (84.121) (84,123)
Cash flows generated from/{used in) operation 39,466 (253,102)
Income lax received - 5,157
Net cash from/ (used in) operating activities 59,466 (247,945)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of plant and equipment 8 - (252,768)
Amounts due from related companies (3,333) -
Receipt of sublease payment 31,366 125,179
Interest received 633 11,602
Net cash from/ (used in) investing activities 28,666 {115,987)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY
Repayment of lease liabilities 5 (63,413) (263,795)
Net cash used in financing activity (63,413) (263,795)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 24,719 (627,727)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 263,594 808,537
Effect of exchange fluctuation on cash held {98) (7,216)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 13 288,215 263,594

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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MITA CAPITAL PTE, LTD.
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial
slatements,

1. Corporate information

Mita Capital Pte. Ltd. (the “Company™) is incorporated and domiciled in the Singapore with
principal place of business and registered office at 105 Cecil Street, #24-03 The Octagon,
Singapore 069534,

The immediate and ultimate holding company is Mita Securities Co., Lid, a private company
incorporated in Japan.

The principal activities of the Company are lund management aclivities and management
consultancy services.

2. Malterial accounting policy information
2.1  Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been drawn up in accordance with Financial
Reporting Standards in Singapore (“FRS™). The financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except as disclosed in the accounting policies below.

The financial statements are presented in Singapore dollar (“S5™), which is the Company’s
functional currency.

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on the basis that it will
conlinue lo operale as a going concem.

2.2 Adoption of new and amended standards and interpretations

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year
except in the current financial year, the Company has adopted all the new and amended
standards which are relevant to the Company and are effective for annual financial periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2024, The adoption of these standards did not have any
material effect on the financial performance or position of the Company.

2.3 Standards issued but not vet effective

A number of new standards and amendments to standard that have been issued are not yet
effective and have not been applied in preparing these (inancial statements,

The directors expect that the adoption of these new and amended standards will have no
material impact on the financial statements in the year of initial application.

2.4  Foreign currency transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the funclional currency of the Company
and are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency at exchange rates
approximating those ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assels and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Non-monetary items that are measured in teoms of historical cost
in a lorcign currency are translated using the exchange rales as at the dates of the initial
transactions, Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translared using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.

10

141/211



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO000O0n(E37044)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MITA CAPITAL PTE. LTD.
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapare)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

2. Material accounting policy information (cont’d)
2.4 Foreign currency transactions and balances (cont'd)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating
monetary items at the end of the reporting period are recognised in profit or loss.

2.5  Revenue
Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for ransferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding
amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue is recognised when the Company satisfies a performance obligation by
transferring a promised good or service (o the customer, which is when the customer
obtains control of the good or service, A performance obligation may be satisfied at a point
in time or over time. The amount of revenue recognised is the amount allocated to the
satisfied performance obligation.
Management fee and performance fee
The management fee and performance fee is recognised over the investment period.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

2.6  Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans
The Company makes contributions to the Central Provident Fund scheme in Singapore, a
defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions to defined contribution pension

schemes are recognised as an expense in the period in which the related service is
performed.

Short-term employee benefiis
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount
expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay
this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be
estimated reliably.

2.7 Taxes
Current income fax
Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authority, The tax rates

and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of reporting period.

11
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MITA CAPITAL PTE. LTD.
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

2. Material accounting policy information (cont’d)
2.7  Taxes (cont’d)
Current income tax (cont'd)

Current income taxes are recognised i profit or loss except to the extent that the tax relates
to items recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect
io situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferved tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the
reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists
to set off current income tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

2.8  Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease.
That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

As lessee

The Company applied a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except
for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease
liabilities representing the obligation to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying leased assets.

{a) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease
(i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct cost incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received, Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term
or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using
the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

12

143/211



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO000DO000DO000O0n(E37044)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MITA CAPITAL PTE. LTD.
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

2. Material accounting policy information (cont’d)
2.8  Leases (cont'd)
As lessee (cont'd)
{b) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities
measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The
lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivables, variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the excrcise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to
be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to lerminate. Vanable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expense in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment ocecurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable. Alter the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. In addition, the carmrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (¢.g. changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine such lease payment) or a change in the assessment to purchase the
underlying asset.

{c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the shori-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term
leases of machinery and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).
It also applies the lease of low-value assels recognition exemption to leases of office
equipment that are considered of low value (i.e., below $35,000). Lease payments on
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

As lessor

At inception or on modification of a contact that contains a lease component, the Company
allocates the consideration in the contact to each lease component on the basis of their
relative stand-alone prices.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the bead lease
and the sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the
underlying asset. If a head lease classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease,

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, then the Company applies
FRS115 to allocate the consideration in the contract.
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MITA CAPITAL PTE. LTD.
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

2, Material accounting policy information (cont’d)
2.8  Leases (cont'd)
As lessor (cont'd)

The Company applies the derecognition and impairment requirement in FRS 119 to the
net investment in the lease (see Note 9). The Company regularly reviews estimated
unguaranteed residual values used in calculating the gross investment in the lease.

2.9  Plant and equipment

All items of plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Subsequent to recognition,
plant and equipment are measurcd al cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. The cost of plant and equipment includes its purchase
price and any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Dismantlement, removal or restoration costs are included as part of the cost of plant and
equipment if the obligation for dismantlement, removal or restoration is incurred as a
consequence of acquiring or using the plant and equipment.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate depreciable amounts
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Useful lives
Leasehold improvement 3 years

The useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

An ilem of plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on derecognition of the
assets is included in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised.

2.10 Impaiment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is an indication
that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when an annual impairment
testing for an asset is required, the Company makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable
amount.

An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generaling unit’s [air
value less costs of disposal and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the assel does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or group of assets, Where the carrying amount of an asset or cash- generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, the assel is considered impaired and is written down
to its recoverable amount. The impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since (he last impairment loss
was recognised. If (hat is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its
recoverable amount. That increase cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised previously.
Such reversal is recognised in profit or loss.
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MITA CAPITAL PTE. LTD.
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

2. Material accounting policy information (cont’d)
2.11 Financial Instruments
(i) Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the Company becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the financial instruments.

At initial recognition, the Company measures a linancial asset at its fair value plus,
in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL™),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Trade receivables are measured at the amount of consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a
customer, excluding amounis collected on behalf of third party, if the trade
receivables do not contain a significant financing component at initial recognition,

Subsequent measurement
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business
model for managing the asset and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
asset. The three measurement categories for classification of debt instruments
amortised cost, FVOCI and FVPL. The Company only has debt instruments at
amortised cost.

Financial assets that are held for the collection of contractual cash flows where thase
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost, Financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the assets are derecognised or impaired, and through amortisation process.

De-recognition
A financial asset is derecognised when the contraciual right to receive cash flows
from the asset has expired. On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the carrying amount and {he sum of the consideration received
and any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income for debt instruments is recognised in profit or loss.

(i) Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The Company
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilitics are recognised initially at fair value plus in the case of financial
liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss, directly atiributable transaction costs,
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MITA CAPITAL PTE. LTD.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

2. Material accounting policy information (cont*d)
2.11 Financial Instruments (cont’d)
(ii) Financial liabilities (cont’d)
Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities that are not carried at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised, and through the amortisation process.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires. On derecognition, the difference between the

2.12 Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss and financial guarantee coniracts.
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at
an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs arc recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a [2-
month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is recognised for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irespective of timing of the default (a lifetime
ECL).

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies a simplified approach in
caleulating ECLs. Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but
instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at the end of each reporting
period. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the deblors and the
cconomic environment which could affect debtars’ ability to pay.

The Company considers a financial asset in default when coniractual payments are 360
days past due. However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset
to be in default when intemmal or external information indicates that the Company is
unlikely o receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account
any credit enhancements held by the Company. A f{inancial asset is written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and on hand which are subject 1o an

insignificant risk of changes in value. These also include bank overdraft that forms an
integral part of the Company's cash management,
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MITA CAPITAL PTE. LTD.
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

2.

Material accounting policy information (cont’d)
2.14 Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to setile the obligation and the amount of
the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate. [fit is no longer probable that an outflow of economic resources will
be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. If the effect of the time value
of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-fax rate that reflects,
where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase
in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

2.15 Share capital

Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares are recognised as share capital in equily.
Incremental costs directly auributable to the issnance of ordinary shares are deducted
against share capital.

Significant accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assels and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilitics at the end of each reporting period.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the future periods.

3.1 Judgments made in applying accounling policies

Determination of functional currency

In determining the functional currency of the Company, judgment is made by the Company
to determine the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company
operates. Consideration factors include the cureency that mainly influences sales prices of
goods and services and the currency of the country whose competitive forces and
regulations mainly determines the sales prices of its goods and services.

3.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period are discussed below. The Company based its assumptions
and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.
Exisling circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change
due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.
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MITA CAPITAL PTE. LTD.
{Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

. 3 Significant accounting judgements and estimates (cont’d)

3.2 Key sources of estimation uncerlainty (cont'd)

Usefid lives of plant and equipment

The useful life of an item of plant and equipment at the end of the reporting period is
estimated at the time the asset is acquired and is based on historical experience with similar
assets and takes into account anticipated technological or other changes. If changes oceur
more rapidly than anticipated or the asset experiences unexpected level of wear and tear,
the useful life will be adjusted accordingly.

The carrying amount of plant and equipment at the end of the reporting period is disclosed
in Note 8.

FProvision for expected credit lasses of trade and other receivables

The Company uses a provision matrix to caleulate ECLs for trade receivables. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar
loss pattems.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Company’s historical observed default rates.
The Company will calibrate the matrix to adjust historical credit loss experience with
forward-looking information. At every reporting date, historical default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast
cconomic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit
loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the Company’s
trade receivables is disclosed in Note 19(a).

The carrying amount of the trade and other receivables and amounts due from related
companies at the end of the reporting period is disclosed in Note 10 and 12,

Ineome taxes

Significant judgment is required in determining the capital allowances and deductibility of
certain expenses during the estimation of the provision for income tax. There are also
claims for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Company recognises liability for expected tax issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. When the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recognised, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the year in which such determination is made.

4. Revenue

2025 2024
RS S8
Revenue recognised aver time
Management fec 972,054 1,157,278
Performance fee 337,720 434,459
1,309,774 1,591,737
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

4. Revenue (cont’d)
Contract balances

The following table provides information about contract assets and contract liabilities fro
contracls with customers.

2025 2024
S5 S8
Contract assets 467,614 417,085
Contract liabilities 245,516 329,637

The contract assets primarily relate to the Company's right to consideration for work completed
but not billed at the reporting date on management fee and performance fee. The contract assets
are transferred to trade receivable when the right become unconditional. The usually occurs when
the Company invoices the customer,

Contract liabilities relate to advance billings issued to excess of the Company’s right to the
consideration.

The contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the company fulfill its performance
obligations under the contract with the customer. The significant changes in contract assets and
contract liabilities during the year are as follows:

Contract assels Contract liabilities
2025 2024 2025 2024
S8 83 S8 5%
Revenue recognised that was
included in the contract
liability balance at the
beginning of the year - - (84,123) {84,123)
Contract assets reclassified to
trade receivables {417,085) (178,626) - -
Changes in measurement of
progress 467,614 417,085 - -
5. Other income
2025 2024
S5 S5
Other service income 2,360 -
Interest income 1,906 6,382
Sublease interest 633 5,220
Gain on lease termination 23,347 -
28,746 11,602
19
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6. Profit/(Loss) before income tax
Profit/(Loss) before income tax has been arvived at afler charging:
2025 2024
S$ 3§
Depreciation of plant and equipment 81,978 61,484
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 62,454 130,641
Foreign exchange loss 10,649 4,599
Professional fee 39419 24,679
Mita sec fee 101,263 153,858
System costs 50,999 34,614
Employee benefit expenses
- Salaries and bonuses 809,403 1,177,207
- CPF contributions 26,044 11,565
Finance cost
- Lease liabilities interest 694 7,952
- Provision of reinstatement cost inlerest 766 1819
7. Income tax expenses

The major components of income tax expense recognised in profit or loss for the financial years

ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 were:

2025

S8
Income tax
- Overprovision in previous financial year

2024
BH

5,157

Relationship betw X expenses accounting profit/(loss

A reconciliation between tax expense and product of accounting profit/(loss) multiplied by the
applicable corporate tax rate for the financial years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024

were as follow:

2025 2024
5% S8

Profit/{Loss) before income tax 27,705 {190.849)
Tax calculated at a tax rate of 17% (2024: 17%) 4,710 (32,444)
Tax effect of:
- Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 7,304 47,432
- Income not subject to tax (4,502) (887)
- Deferred tax assets not recognised (7,512) (14,101)
- Overprovision in previous financial year - 5,157

- 5,157

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried

forward to the extent that

realisation of the related tax benefits through future taxable profits is probable. The Company has
unrecognised tax losses approximately of $8550,650 (2024: $5592,300) and at the end of the
reporting period which can be carried forward and used to offset against future taxable income
subject to meeting certain statutory requirements. The fax losses have no expiry date.
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Plant and equipment

Costs

At 1 April 2023

Additions

At 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2025

Accumulated Depreciation
At 1 April 2023

Additions

At 31 March 2024
Depreciation

At 31 March 2025

Net Carrying Amounts
At 31 March 2024

At 31 March 2025

Right-of-use asscts
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Leasehold
improvement
5%

252,768

252,768

61,484
61,484

__ 8197
143,462

191,284

109,306

The Company has lease contract for office premise in its operations. Lease of office premise

generally have a lease term of 3 years.

During 2022, the leased properties has been sub-let by the Company to its related companies. The

lease and sub-lease expire in 2025,

Information about leases for which the Company is a lessee is presented below:

Costs

At 1 April 2023
Additions

AL 31 March 2024
Derecognition

At 31 March 2025

At 1 April 2023
Additions

At 31 March 2024
Depreciation
Derecognition

At 31 March 2025

Net ing Amounls
At 31 March 2024

At 31 March 2025
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

10.

11.

12.

13.

Trade and other receivables

2025 2024
S8 Ss
Trade receivables — third parties - 16,758
Other receivables - 8,424
Interest receivables 817 1,201
Deposits 1,620 67,698
Prepayments 5,715 7.835
8,152 101,916

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 (2024: 30) days’ terms.

Finance lease receivables

The Company has sub-leased a building that has been presented as part of a right-of-use assets
(MNote 9} to its related companies.

During 2025, the Company recognised interest income of lease receivables of $8633 (2024
$$5,220).

The following table sets out a maturity analysis of lease receivables, showing the undiscounted
lease payments to be received after the reporting date.

2025 2024
5% 58
Less than one year, representing undiscounted finance

lease receivables - 52,578
Uneamed finance income - {633)
Finance lease receivables - 51,945
Current - 51,945
- 51,945

Amounts due from related companies

Amounts due [rom related companies are non-frade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and
recoverable on demand.

Cash and short-term deposits

2025 2024
S8 5%
Cash at bank 288,215 263,594
Fixed deposits 105,528 103,238
393,743 366,832
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MITA CAPITAL PTE. LTD.
{Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

I3.  Cash and short-term deposits (cont’d)

For the purpose of presenting the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the
following at the end of the financial year:

2025 2024
88 58
Cash and short-term deposits 393,743 366,832
Less: Fixed deposit with original maturity more than 3
months (105,528) (103,238)
288,215 263,594
14.  Other payables
2025 2024
33 5%
Other payables 6,665 16,862
Accrued operating expenses 112,564 153,961
119,229 170,823

15.  Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of the lease liabilities and the movement during the financial year are as

below:
2025 2024
S8 88
At beginning of the financial year 62,719 191,518
Additions - 127,044
Accretion of interest 694 7,952
Cash flow payment in financial activilies (63.413) (263,795)
Al end of the financial year - 62,719
Current - 62,719
2025 2024
55 38
Amounts recognised in profit or loss:
Interest expenses on lease liabilities 694 7,952
Expense relating to short-lerm leases 21,008 4,874
Income from sub-leasing right-of-use assets presented in
“ather income™ (633) (5,220)
23
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

16.  Share capital

2025 2024
No. of MNo. of
shares S§ shares 5%
Ordinary shares, fssued and fully paid
Al beginning of financial year
and at end of the financial year 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the
Company. All ordinary shares carry one vole per share without restrictions. The ordinary shares
have no par value.

17.  Significant related party transactions
In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the

following significant transactions with related parties on terms mutually agreed during the
financial year are as follows:

2025 2024
5% 58
Transactions with immediate and ultimate holding
company
Mita sec fees (101,263) (153,858)
ransactions with related companies
Receipt of sublease payment 31,366 125,179
Interest income received/receivables 633 5,220
Professional fee (12,400) (18,915)
Short-term lease payment (21,008) -
Compensation of key management personnel
Salaries and bonuses 308,334 516,689
CPF contributions - 3,398
308,334 525,087

18.  TFair values of assets and liabilities
(a)  Assets and liabilities measured at fair value

At the end of the reporting period, the Company do not have assets and liabilities measured
al fair value,

(b)  Assets and liabilities not measured at fair value

Other receivables, interest receivables, other payables, accrued operating expenses, cash
und short-term deposits

The carrying amounts of these balances approximate their fair values due to the short-term
nature of these balances.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

18.  Fair values of assets and liabilities (cont’d)
(b)  Assets and liabilities not measured at fair value (cont’d)
Trade receivables, contract assets and contract labilifies

The carrying amounts of these balances approximate their fair values as they are subject
to normal trade credit terms.

Finance lease receivables, lease liabilities and provision of reinstatements cost

The carrying amounts of these balances approximate their fair values as they arc subject
to interest rates close to the market rate of interests for similar arrangements with financial
institutions.

19.  Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks from its operation. The key
financial risks include credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including foreign currency nisk
and interest rate risk),

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies and procedures for the management of these
risks, which are executed by the management team. It is and has been throughout the current and
previous financial year, the Company’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative
purposes shall be undertaken.

The following sections provide details regarding the Company’s exposure to the above-
mentioned financial risks and the objectives, policics and processes for the management of these
risks.

There has been no change to the Company’s exposure to these financial risks or the manner in
which it manages and measures the risks.

(a)  Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will default on its contractual obli gations
resulting in a loss to the Company. The Company's exposure to credit risk arises primarily
from trade and other receivables and amounts due from related companies. For other
financial assets (including cash and cash equivalents), the Company minimises credit risk
by dealing exclusively with high credit rating counterparties.

The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties. The
Company performs ongoing credit evaluation of its counterparties® financial condition and
generally do not require a collateral,

The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and

whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout
cach reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

19.  Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont*d)
(a)  Credit risk (cont’d)

The Company has determined the default event on a financial asset 1o be high when intemal
and/or external information indicates that the financial asset is unlikely to be received,
which could include default of contractual paymentis due for more than 360 days, default
of interest due for more than 120 days or there is significant difficulty of the counterparty.

To minimise credit risk, the Company has developed and maintained the Company's credit
risk gradings to categorise exposures according to their degree of risk of default. The credit
rating information is supplied by publicly available financial information and the
Company's own trading records to rate its major customers and other debtors. The
Company considers available reasonable and supportive forward-looking information
which includes the following indicators;

(i)  Intemal credit rating

(i)  External credit rating

(iif) Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligations

(v)  Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the debtor

(vi)  Significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same debtor

(vii) Significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour of the debtor,
including changes in the payment status of debtors in the group and changes in the
operating results of the debtor.

Regardless of the analysis above, a significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor
is more than 120 days past due in making contractual payment.

The Company determined that its financial assets are credit-impaired when:

(i}  There is significant difficulty of the debtor

(ii) A breach of contract, such as a default or past due event

(i) It is becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptey or other financial
reorganisation

(iv) There is a disappeatance of an active market for that financial asset because of
financial difficulty

The Company categorises a receivable for potential write-off when a debtor fails to make
contractual payments more than 360 days past due. Financial assets are written ff when
there is evidence indicating (hat the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and the debtor
has no realistic prospect of recovery.

The Company’s current credit risk grading framework comprises the following categories:

Basis for recognising
expected credit loss

Category Definition of category (ECL}
[ Counterparty has a low risk of default and does not 12-month ECL
have any past-due amounts.

Il Amount is more than 120 days past due or there has Lifetime ECL - not
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial credit- impaired
recognition.
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19.  Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)
{a)  Credit risk (cont'd)
The Company's current credit risk grading framework comprises the following categories:

Basis for recognising
expected credit loss

Category Definition of category (ECL)
LI Amount is more than 360 days past due or there is Lifetime ECL — credit-
evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired (in impaired
default).

IV There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe Amount is written off
financial difficulty and the debtor has no realistic

prospect of recovery.

The table below details the credit quality of the Company’s financial assets, as well as
maximum exposure to credit risk by credit risk rating categories:

Gross Net
I2-monthor  carrying  Loss carrying
Note Category lifetime ECL  amount allowance amount

88 8% S8
31 March 2025
Interest receivables 10 [ 12-month ECL 817 - 817
Deposits 10 I 12-month ECL 1,620 - 1,620
Contract assels 4 I Lifetime ECL 467,614 - 467,614
(simplified)
Amounis due from 12 1 12-menth ECL 3,333 - 3,333
related companies
31 March 2024
Trade receivables 10 Notel Lifetime ECL 16,758 - 16,758
{simplified)
Other receivables 10 I 12-month ECL 8,424 - 8,424
Interest receivables 10 I [2-month ECL 1,201 - 1,201
Deposits 10 I 12-month ECL. 72,719 - 72,719
Contract assets 4 [ Lifetime ECL. 417,085 - 417,085
(simplified)
Finance lease 1 I 12-month ECL.  5[,945 - 51,945
receivables

Trade reccivables (Note 1)

For trade receivables, the Company has applied the simplified approach in FRS 109 to
measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The Company determines the ECL by using
a provision matrix, estimated based on historical credit loss experience based on the past
due status of the debtors, adjusted as appropriate to reflect current conditions and estimates
of future economic conditions. Accordingly, the credit risk profile of trade receivables is
presented based on their past due status in terms of the provision matrix.
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19.  Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)
(a) Credit risk {cont’d)

Trade receivables (Note 1) (cont’d)

Trade receivables
Days past due
Notpast 3160 611090 Morethan
due days days 90 days Total
S8 S Sk S8 S8
31 March 2025
ECL rate - - - - -
Estimated total gross - - - -
carrying amount at default -
ECL - - - - -
31 March 2024
ECL rate - - - = -
Total gross carrying amount - 16,758 - - 16,758
ECL - - - - -

Excessive risk concentraiion

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business
activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have economic features that
would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes
in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity
of the Company's performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

Exposure to credit vist;

The Company has no significant concentration of credit risk. The Company has credit
policies and procedures in place to minimise and mitigate its credit risk exposure.

Other receivables, interest receivables, deposits, and amounts due from related companies

The Company assessed the latest performance and financial position of the counterparties,
adjusted for the future outlook of the industry in which the counterparties operate in, and
concluded that there has been no significant increase in the credit risk since the initial
recognition of the financial assets. Accordingly, the Company measured the impairment
loss allowance using 12-month ECL and determined that the ECL is insignificant.

(a) Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in meeting its
shorl- term obligations due to shortage of funds. The Company's exposure to liquidity risk
arises primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities. It is
managed by matching the payment and receipt cycles. The Company’s objective is to
maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of stand-
by credit facilities. The Company's operations are financed mainly through equity. The
directors are satisfied that funds are available to finance the operations of the Company.
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19.  Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)
(b) Liquidity risk (cont’d)
Amalysis of financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial assets and
liabilities at the reporting date based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations.

Due Afler 1 year
Carrying Contractual  within | but within 5

amount  cash flow year vears

31 March 2025 S8 58 S8 S5
Fingneial assets
Trade and other receivables 2,437 2,437 2,437 -
Contract assets 467,614 467,614 467,614
Amounts due from related

companies 3,333 3,333 3,333 -
Cash and short-term deposits 393,743 393,743 393,743 -
Total undiscounted financial assets 867,127 867,127 867,127 -
Financial liabilisi
Other payables 119,229 119,229 119,229 -
Contact liabilities 245,516 245,516 84,123 161,393
Total undiscounted financial

liabilities 364,745 364,745 203,352 161,393
Total net undiscounted financial

assets/(liabilities) 502,382 502,382 663,775  (161,393)
31 March 2024
Fingneial assels
Deposits 5,021 5,021 - 5,021
Finance lease receivables 51,945 52,578 52,578 -
Trade and other receivables 24,081 94,081 94,081 -
Contract assels 417,085 417,085 417,085 -
Cash and short-term deposits 366,832 366,832 366,832 -
Total undiscounted financial assets 934,964 935,597 030,576 5,021

Financial liabilities

Other payables 170,823 170,823 170,823 .
Provision for reinstatements cost 43,660 44,429 - 44,429
Lease liabilities 62,719 63,412 63,412 -
Contact Liabilities 329,637 329,637 84,123 245,514
Total undiscounted financial

liabilities 606,839 608,301 318,358 289,943
Total net undiscounted financial

assels/{liabilities) 328,125 327,296 612,218  (284,922)
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19.

Financial risk management objectives and policics (cont’d)

(c)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates and foreign
exchange rates will affect the Company’s income. The objective of markel risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters,
while optimising the return on risk.

(i)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Company's
financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company’s exposure to interest rate risk avises primarily from their cash and short-
term deposits, finance lease receivables and lease liabilities

The Company does not expect any significant effect on the Company’s profit or loss
arising from the effects of reasonably possible changes to interest rates on interest
bearing financial instruments at the end of the financial year.

Foreign currency nisk

The Company’s foreign cxchange risk results mainly from cash flows from
transactions denominated in foreign currencies. At present, the Company does not
bave any formal policy for hedging against currency risk. The Company ensures
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign
currencies at spot rates, where necessary, to address short term imbalances.

The Company has transactional currency exposures arising from sales that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company,
primarily United States Dollar (*USD") and Japanese Yen (“JPY™).

The Company’s currency exposures to the SGD at the end of the reporting period
were as follows:

2025 2024
UsD JPY usD JPY
83 53 S8 Ss
Financial assets
Trade and other - - 16,758 .
receivables
Contract assels 201,953 225,660 313,827 103,258
Cash and short-tenm
deposits 43,164 129,455 14,469 2,156
245,117 355,115 345,054 105,414
Financial liabilitics
Other payables 16,964 12,795 34,473 6,881
Net currency exposure 228,153 342,320 310,581 98,533

A 5% strengthening of Singapore dollar against the foreign currencies denominated
balances as at the reporting date would decrease profit or loss by the amounts shown
below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant.
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19.  Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)
(c)  Market risk (cont"d)
(i) Foreign currency risk (cont’d)

Profit/(Loss) after income tax

2025 2024
S 88
United States dollar (11,408) (15,529)
Japanese Yen (17,116) (4,927)

A 5% weakening of Singapore dollar against the above currencies would have had
equal but opposite effect on the above currencies lo the amounts shown above, on
the basis that all other variables remain constant,

20. Financial instruments category

Al the reporting date, the aggregate carrying amounts of financial assets at amortised cost and
financial liabilities at amortised cost were as follows:

2025 2024

S5 S3
Financial gssets measured at amortised cost
Deposits - 5,021
Finance lease receivables - 51,945
Trade and other receivables 2,437 94,081
Coniract assets 467,614 417,085
Amounts due from related companies 3,333 -
Cash and short-term deposits 303,743 366,832

867,127 934,964
Financial liabilities measuwred at amorfised
Other payables 119,229 170,823
Provision for reinstatements cost - 43,660
Lease liabilities B 62,719
Contact liabilities 245516 329,637

364,745 606,839

21.  Capital Management

The primary objective of the Company s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong
credit rating and net current asset position in order to support its business and maximise
shareholder value. The capital structure of the Company comprises issued share capital,

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the

dividend payment to sharcholders, return capital lo shareholders or issue new shares. The
Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
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21.  Capital Management (cont*d)
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No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the financial years ended

31 March 2025 and 31 Mavch 2024,

The Company is not subject to any extemnally imposed capital requirements. The Company’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from the end of last financial period.

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for its shareholder and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

22, Prior yvear reclassification

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior financial year's financial statements to

enhance comparability with the current year's financial statements.

As a result, certain line items have been amended in the statement of financial position, statement
of comprehensive income, and statement of cash flows, and the related noted to the financial
statements. Comparative figures have been adjusted to confirm the cwirent financial year's

presentation as follow:

Alfter
reclassification

Statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income

Other income

Finance income, net

Finance cost

Statement of financial position
Non-current assels:

- Deposits

Current assets:

- Trade and other receivables

As previously
Reclassification reported
88 58
11,602 -
(1,831) 1,831
(9,771) -
{67,698) 72,719
67,698 34,218

23.  Authorisation of financial statements for issue

The financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2025 were authorised for issuc in

accordance with a resolution of the Directors on 26 August 2023,
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Ogier Global Trustee Cayman Limited

2025 10,000 149
0GCL
0GCL
CIMA CIMA
Mita Capital Pte.Ltd.)
2025 1,000,000 115
2019
CMS101272
MAS
ASCENT Fund Services (Singapore Pte. Ltd.
2025 2,550,000 381
2019
vCC
FATCA CRS
FX
2025

1947 70
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR®"S REPORT
To the Trustee of MS Star Funds
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of MS Star Funds (the ““Fund~”), which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2025 and the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in net assets attributable to unitholders and the statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material
accounting policy information (all expressed in USD).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Fund as at 31 March 2025, and its financial
performance, its changes in net assets attributable to unitholders and its cash flows for the
year then ended, in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (1ASB).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (1SAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor®s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Fund in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants® International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to note 6 to the financial statements which indicates that the financial
year-end of the underlying collective investment schemes held by the Fund are not co-
terminous with that of the Fund and consequently, the independently audited financial
statements are not available as at the reporting date of the Fund. As a result, the valuation
of these collective investment schemes amounting to USD23,495,295, cannot be corroborated
against independently audited net asset values as at 31 March 2025 and have been based on
unaudited net asset values as provided by the administrator of those underlying funds.
Because of the inherent uncertainty in the above valuations, reported figures might differ
from the values that would have been obtained had independently audited net asset values of
the concerned investments as of 31 March 2025 been available.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of the above matter.
Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
statement of Trustee"s responsibilities and fund information but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor®s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the 1ASB, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Fund®s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Fund®s financial reporting
process.

Auditor®s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor”s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with I1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund"s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund®s
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ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty

exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor™s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor"s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Deloitte & Touche LLP

18 September 2025
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2025 26

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
MITA CAPITAL PTE. LTD.
(Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Mita Capital Pte. Ltd. (the
““Company””), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2025, the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows of the Company for the financial year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act 1967 (the ““Act””) and Financial Reporting Standards in
Singapore (““FRSs””) so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as at 31 March 2025 and of the financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows
of the Company for the financial year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (““SSAs””). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor®s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority (““ACRA””) Code
of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (““ACRA
Code””) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2024 were
audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 29
August 2024.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Directors® Statement set out on pages 1 to 2.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with the provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and
maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable
assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and
transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the
preparation of true and fair financial statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company®s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors® responsibilities include overseeing the Company"s financial reporting process.

Auditor"s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor®s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company"s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company"s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor®s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing

of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company
have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

KBW ASSURANCE LLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants

Singapore,
26 August 2025
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